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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20436

In the Matter of
CERTAIN BULK WELDING WIRE Investigation No. 337-TA-686
CONTAINERS AND COMPONENTS
THEREOF AND WELDING WIRE

NOTICE OF COMMISSION DETERMINATION TO REVIEW-IN-PART A FINAL
INITIAL DETERMINATION AND TO AFFIRM THE FINDING OF NO VIOLATION
OF SECTION 337; TERMINATION OF THE INVESTIGATION

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has
determined to review a portion of the final initial determination (“ID”) issued by the presiding
administrative law judge (“ALJ”) on July 29, 2010 finding no violation of section 337 in the
above-captioned investigation, but to affirm his finding of no violation.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Jia Chen, Office of the General Counsel, U.S.
International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20436, telephone (202)
708-4737. Copies of non-confidential documents filed in connection with this investigation are
or will be available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the
Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street, S.W., Washington,
D.C. 20436, telephone (202) 205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may
also be obtained by accessing its Internet server at http://www.usitc.gov. The public record for
this investigation may be viewed on the Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) at
http://edis.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can
be obtained by contacting the Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted this investigation on
September 8, 2009, based on a complaint filed by the Lincoln Electric Company of Cleveland,
Ohio and Lincoln Global, Inc. of City of Industry, California (collectively, “Lincoln”). 74 Fed.
Reg. 46223 (Sept. 8, 2009). The complaint alleged violations of Section 337 in the importation
into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after
importation of certain bulk welding wire containers, components thereof, and welding wire by
reason of infringement of certain claims of United States Patent Nos. 6,260,781; 6,648,141,
6,708,864 (“the ‘864 patent™); 6,913,145; 7,309,038; 7,398,881; and 7,410,111. Id. The
amended complaint named the following respondents: Atlantic China Welding Consumables,
Inc. of Sichuan, China (“Atlantic”); The ESAB Group, Inc. of Florence, South Carolina



(“ESAB”); Hyundai Welding Co., Ltd. of Seoul, Korea (“Hyundai”); Kiswel Co., Ltd. of Seoul,
Korea (“Kiswel”); and Sidergas SpA of Ambrogio (Verona), Italy (“Sidergas™). 74 Fed. Reg.
61706 (Nov. 25, 2009). Respondents Hundai, Kiswel, and Atlantic were subsequently
terminated from the investigation, leaving ESAB and Sidergas as the only respondents
remaining. In addition, all but the ‘864 patent were terminated from this investigation.

On July 29, 2010, the ALJ issued a final ID finding no violation of Section 337 by
respondents ESAB or Sidergas. The ALJ concluded that none of the accused ESAB and Sidergas
products infringe asserted claims 3, 4, 6, 12, or 13 of the ‘864 patent. The ALJ further concluded
that claim 3 of the ‘864 patent is invalid under 35 U.S.C. § 102(b) and that claims 4, 6, 12, and
13 of the ‘864 patent are valid and enforceable. The ALJ did find that complainant satisfied both
the technical and the economic prong of the domestic industry requirement with respect to the
‘864 patent. On August 11, 2010, Lincoln filed a petition for review. On the same day,
respondents ESAB and Sidergas filed a consolidated petition for review. The IA did not file a
petition for review.

Having examined the record of this investigation, including the ALJ’s final ID and the
submissions of the parties, the Commission has determined to affirm the ALJ’s determination
that there is no violation of Section 337. Specifically, the Commission has determined to affirm
the ALJ’s determination that there is no literal infringement of the asserted claims. The
Commission has also determined to affirm the ALJ’s determination that there is no infringement
of the asserted claims under the doctrine of equivalents based on (1) the ALJ’s finding that
substantial differences exist between the accused products and the asserted claims, and (2) the
ALJ’s application of Johnson & Johnston Assoc. Inc. v. R.E. Services Co., 285 F.3d 1036 (Fed.
Cir. 2002) (en banc). The Commission has determined to review the following four issues and to
take no position on them: (1) the claim construction of the terms “substantially lying in a single
plane” recited in independent claim 3 and “substantially in one plane” recited in independent
claims 6 and 12; (2) the priority date of the asserted claims; (3) invalidity of claim 3 under 35
U.S.C. § 102(b); and (4) validity of claims 4, 6, 12, and 13 under 35 U.S.C. § 102(b). No other
issues are being reviewed.

The authority for the Commission’s determination is contained in section 337 of the

Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. § 1337), and in sections 210.42-46 and 210.50 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 C.F.R. §§ 210.42-46 and 210.50).

By order of the Commission.

Marilyn R. Abbott
Secretary to the Commission

Issued: September 24, 2010
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Pursuant to the Notice of Investigation and Rule 210.42 of the Rules of Practice and
Procedure of the United States International Trade Commission, this is the Administrative Law
Judge’s Final Initial Determination in the matter of Certain Bulk Welding Wire Containers &
Components Thereof & Welding Wire, Investigation No. 337-TA-686.

The Administrative Law Judge hereby determines that a violation of Section 337 of the
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, has not been found in the importation into the United States, the
sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain bulk welding
wire containers and components thereof and welding wire, in connection with U.S. Patent No.
6,708,864. Furthermore, the Administrative Law Judge hereby determines that a domestic

industry in the United States exists that practices U.S. Patent No. 6,708,864.
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The following abbreviations may be used in this Initial Determination:

CDX Complainants’ demonstrative exhibit
CIB Complainants’ initial post-hearing brief
CPX Complainants’ physical exhibit

CRB Complainants’ reply post-hearing brief
CX Complainants’ exhibit

Dep. Deposition

JSRCC Joint Statement Regarding Claim Construction
JX Joint Exhibit

RDX Respondents’ demonstrative exhibit
EIB ESAB’s initial post-hearing brief
SGIB Sidergas’ initial post-hearing brief
RPX Respondents’ physical exhibit

ERB ESAB’s reply post-hearing brief
SGRB Sidergas’ reply post-hearing brief
RRX Respondents’ rebuttal exhibit

RX Respondents’ exhibit

SIB Staff’s initial post-hearing brief

SRB Staff’s reply post-hearing brief

Tr. Transcript

CPHB Complainants’ pre-hearing brief
EPHB ESAB’s pre-hearing brief

SGPHB Sidergas’ pre-hearing brief

SPHB Staff’s pre-hearing brief

vi




PUBLIC VERSION

I. BACKGROUND
A. Procedural History

On September 2, 2009, the Commission issued a Notice of Investigation in this matter to

determine:
[W]hether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section
337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for
importation, or the sale within the United States after importation
of certain bulk welding wire containers or components thereof or
welding wire that infringe one or more of claim 1 of U.S. Patent
No. 6,260,781; claims 1, 4, 8, and 9 of U.S. Patent No. 6,648,141;
claims 3, 4, 6, 12, and 13 of U.S. Patent No. 6,708,864; claim 4 of
U.S. Patent No. 6,913,145; claims 1-7, 12, 13, 16, 19-24, 31, 33-
36, 43, and 46 of U.S. Patent No. 7,309,038; claim 1 of U.S. Patent
No. 7,398,881; and claim 11 of U.S. Patent No. 7,410,111, and
whether an industry in the United States exists as required by
subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

(See Notice of Investigation.) The investigation was instituted upon publication of the Notice of
Investigation in the Federal Register on September 8§, 2009. See 74 Fed. Reg. 46223-46224
(2009). 19 CFR § 210.10(b).

The complainants are The Lincoln Electric Company of Cleveland, Ohio and Lincoln
Global, Inc. of City of Industry, California. The respondents were Atlantic China Welding
Consumables, Inc. of Sichuan, China; ESAB AB of Goteborg, Sweden; Hyundai Welding Co.,
Ltd. of Seoul, Korea; Kiswel Co., Ltd. of Seoul, Korea; and Sidergas SpA of Verona, Italy. The
Commission Investigative Staff of the Office of Unfair Import Investigations is also a party in
this investigation.

On October 30, 2009, I issued an initial determination granting a motion to amend the

. Complaint and Notice of Investigation filed by complainants The Lincoln Electric Company and

Lincoln Global, Inc. (collectively “Lincoln”). The amendment removed ESAB AB as a
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respondent and added The ESAB Group, Inc. of Florence, South Carolina as a respondent. On
November 19, 2009, the Commission issued a notice of decision not to review the initial
determination.

On November 12, 2009, I issued an initial determination granting Lincoln’s motion to
terminate the investigation in part. Specifically, the investigation was terminated with respect to
U.S. Patent Nos. 6,648,141; 6,913,145; 7,398,881; and 7,410,111. On December 7, 2009, the
Commission issued a notice of decision not to review the initial determination.

On December 1, 2009, I issued an initial determination granting a joint motion to
terminate the investigation as to respondent Hyundai Welding Co., Ltd. on the basis of a
settlement agreement. On December 16, 2009, the Commission issued a notice of decision not to
review the initial determination.

On December 15, 2009, I issued an initial determination granting Lincoln’s motion to
terminate the investigation in part. Specifically, the investigation was terminated with respect to
U.S. Patent No. 6,260,781. On January 11, 2010, the Commission issued a notice of decision not
to review the initial determination.

On January 4, 2010, I issued an initial determination granting a joint motion to terminate
the investigation as to respondent Kiswel Ltd. on the basis of a settlement agreement. On
January 21, 2010, the Commission issued a notice of decision not to review the initial
determination.

On January 11, 2010, I issued an initial determination granting Lincoln’s motion to
terminate the investigation as to respondent Atlantic China Welding Consumables, Inc. on the
basis of a withdrawal of all allegations against respondent Atlantic China Welding Consumables,

Inc. On January 27, 2010, the Commission issued a notice of decision not to review the initial
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determination.

On January 12, 2010, I issued an initial determination granting Lincoln’s motion to
terminate the investigation in part. Specifically, the investigation was terminated with respect to
U.S. Patent No. 7,309,038. On January 27, 2010, the Commission issued a notice of decision not
to review the initial determination.

I denied all summary determination motions filed by the parties.

An evidentiary hearing was conducted before me from April 5, 2010 through April 8§,
2010. Lincoln, The ESAB Group, Inc. (“ESAB™), Sidergas SpA (“Sidergas”),' and the
Commission Investigative Staff (“Staff”) participated in the hearing. In support of its case-in-
chief and rebuttal case, Lincoln called the following witnesses:

e George D. Blankenship (President, Lincoln Electric North America, Inc. &

President/CEQ, Lincoln Global, Inc.);

e James T. Land (Manager of International Engineering, The Lincoln Electric Company,

Inc.);

e Dennis K. Hartman (Project Engineer, The Lincoln Electric Company, Inc.);
e Dr. Edward M. Caulfield (expert witness); and
e Dr. Lee Swanger (expert witness).

In support of their case-in-chief and rebuttal case, Respondents called the following

witnesses:
¢ Richard G. McBride (Engineering Manager, The ESAB Group, Inc.);
e Dr. Stuart Brown (expert witness);

e Carlo Gelmetti (Marketing & Sales Manager, Sidergas, SpA);

! ESAB and Sidergas will be referred to collectively as “Respondents.”
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e Dr. Peter Savoy (expert witness); and
e Robert Gilmour (former employee at Praxair Inc.).

In addition, various deposition transcripts were received into evidence in lieu of direct
witness statements or live testimony.

After the hearing, post-hearing briefs and reply briefs were filed on April 30, 2010 and
May 7, 2010, respectively.

B. The Private Parties

1. Lincoln

The Lincoln Electric Company is an Ohio corporation headquartered in Cleveland, Ohio.
(CX-410C; CX-376C at Q. 9.) Lincoln Global, Inc. is a Delaware corporation headquartered in
City of Industry, California. (CX-410C; CX-376C at Q. 9.) Lincoln Global, Inc. was formed to
own the intellectual property portfolio developed by Lincoln Electric. (CX-367C at Q. 8.) Both
companies are subsidiaries of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc. (CX-376C at Q. 3.)

2. Respondents

ESAB is a Delaware corporation based in Florence, South Carolina. (RX-95C at Q. 7.)
Sidergas is an Italian corporation with its principal place of business at Viale Rimembranza 17,
37010 S. Ambrogio, Verona, Italy. (CX-395C at 15.)

C. Overview Of The Patent At Issue

The sole patent remaining in this investigation is U.S. Patent No. 6,708,864 (“the ‘864
patent™). It is entitled ““S’ Shaped Cast In Wire,” and the named inventors are Otto Ferguson, III
and Dennis K. Hartman. The ‘864 patent was filed on March 26, 2002, and it claims priority to a
provisional application filed on June 15, 2001. The ‘864 patent issued on March 23, 2004. The

Abstract of the ‘864 patent provides the following:
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A weld wire for storage on a spool of weld wire. The weld wire has a

substantially linear cast in the form of an undulating curve that generally lies in a

single plane. The undulating curve is a succession of generally semi-circular

sections having a generally fixed radius of curvature. The linear cast is formed on

the weld wire prior to the weld wire being wound on the spool of weld wire. The

linear cast is at least partially retained on the weld wire after the weld wire is

unwound from the spool and during the feeding of the weld wire through a

welding machine.
(JX-1.)

D. Products At Issue

Lincoln identifies the following ESAB products as the products accused of infringing the
‘864 patent: OK AristoRod™ 12.50 weld wire with 0.035 inch, 0.045 inbh and 0.052 inch
diameters; MIG-3 and MIG-6 weld wire with 0.035 inch, 0.045 inch and 0.052 inch diameters;
and Arc-Plus 6 weld wire with 0.035 inch, 0.045 inch and 0.052 inch diameters. (CIB at 20.)
Lincoln identifies the following Sidergas products as the products accused of infringing the ‘864
patent: ProStar® by Praxair PAC 330, 990 and 1200, and similar packaging, including Sidergas’
S-3 and S-6 weld wire with 0.035 inch and 0.045 inch diameters. (CIB at 21.) Lincoln states
that the relevant Lincoln products are the Exact-Trak weld wire products as well as the Accu-Pak
and Accu-Trak bulk wire products. (CIB at 19.)

II. JURISDICTION

A. Subject Matter Jurisdiction

The complaint alleges that ESAB and Sidergas have violated Subsection 337(a)(1)(B) by
the importation and sale of products that infringe the asserted patents. I find that ESAB imports
into the United States, sells for importation, or sells within the United States after importation
products that Lincoln has accused of infringement in this investigation. (RX-95C at Q. 7-15.) 1

find that Sidergas imports into the United States, sells for importation, or sells within the United

States after importation products that Lincoln has accused of infringement in this investigation.
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(CX-395C at 14, 16-19.) Thus, I find that the Commission has subject matter jurisdiction over
this investigation under Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. See Amgen, Inc. v. United States
Int’l Trade Comm’n, 902 F.2d 1532, 1536 (Fed. Cir. 1990).

B. Personal Jurisdiction

ESAB and Sidergas both responded to the complaint and notice of investigation,
participated in the investigation, made an appearance at the hearing, and submitted post-hearing
briefs. Thus, I find that ESAB and Sidergas submitted to the personal jurisdiction of the
Commission. See Certain Miniature Hacksaws, Inv. No. 337-TA-237, Initial Determination,
1986 WL 379287 (October 15, 1986).

C. In Rem Jurisdiction

The Commission has in rem jurisdiction over the products at issue by virtue of the
finding that accused products have been imported into the United States. See Sealed Air Corp. v.
United States Int’l Trade Comm’n, 645 F.2d 976, 985 (C.C.P.A. 1981).

III. CLAIM CONSTRUCTION

A. Applicable Law

“An infringement analysis entails two steps. The first step is determining the meaning
and scope of the patent claims asserted to be infringed. The second step is comparing the
properly construed claims to the device accused of infringing.” Markman v. Westview
Instruments, Inc., 52 ¥.3d 967, 976 (Fed. Cir. 1995) (en banc), aff’d, 517 U.S. 370 (1996)
(citation omitted). Claim construction “is a matter of law exclusively for the court.” Id. at 970-
71. “The construction of claims is simply a way of elaborating the normally terse claim
language in order to understand and explain, but not to change, the scope of the claims.”

Embrex, Inc. v. Serv. Eng’g Corp., 216 F.3d 1343, 1347 (Fed. Cir. 2000). “[O]nly those [claim]
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terms need be construed that are in controversy, and only to the extent necessary to resolve the
controversy.” Vivid Techs., Inc. v. Am. Sci. & Eng’g, Inc.,200 F.3d 795, 803 (Fed. Cir. 1999).

Claim construction focuses on the intrinsic evidence, which consists of the claims
themselves, the specification, and the prosecution history. See generally Phillips v. AWH Corp.,
415 F.3d 1303 (Fed. Cir. 2005) (en banc). The Federal Circuit in Phillips explained that in
construing terms, courts must analyze each of these components to determine the “ordinary and
customary meaning of a claim term,” which is “the meaning that the term would have to a person
of ordinary skill in the art in question at the time of the invention.” Id. at 1313.

“It is a ‘bedrock principle’ of patent law that ‘the claims of a patent define the invention
to which the patentee is entitled the right to exclude.”” Id. at 1312 (citations omitted). “Quite
apart from the written description and the prosecution history, the claims themselves provide
substantial guidance as to the meaning of particular claim terms.” Id. at 1314. For example, “the
context in which a term is used in the asserted claim can be highly instructive,” and “[o]ther
claims of the patent in question, both asserted and unasserted, can also be valuable sources of
enlightenment as to the meaning of a claim term.” Id.

“[TThe specification ‘is always highly relevant to the claim construction analysis.
Usually, it is dispositive; it is the single best guide to the meaning of a disputed term.”” Id.
(citation omitted). “The longstanding difficulty is the contrasting nature of the axioms thét (a)a
claim must be read in view of the specification and (b) a court may not read a limitation into a
claim from the specification.” Innova/Pure Water, Inc. v. Safari Water Filtration Sys., Inc., 381
F.3d 1111, 1117 (Fed. Cir. 2004). The Federal Circuit has explained that there are certain
instances when the specification may limit the meaning of the claim language:

[Olur cases recognize that the specification may reveal a special definition given
to a claim term by the patentee that differs from the meaning it would otherwise
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possess. In such cases, the inventor’s lexicography governs. In other cases, the

specification may reveal an intentional disclaimer, or disavowal, of claim scope

by the inventor. In that instance as well, the inventor has dictated the correct

claim scope, and the inventor’s intention, as expressed in the specification, is

regarded as dispositive.

Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1316.

In addition to the claims and the specification, the prosecution history should be
examined if in evidence. “The prosecution history...consists of the complete record of the
proceedings before the PTO and includes the prior art cited during the examination of the patent.
Like the specification, the prosecution history provides evidence of how the PTO and the
inventor understood the patent.” Id. at 1317 (citation omitted). “[T]he prosecution history can
often inform the meaning of the claim language by demonstrating how the inventor understood
the invention and whether the inventor limited the invention in the course of prosecution, making
the claim scope narrower than it would otherwise be.” Id.

If the intrinsic evidence does not establish the meaning of a claim, then extrinsic evidence
may be considered. Extrinsic evidence consists of all evidence external to the patent and the
prosecution history, including dictionaries, inventor testimony, expert testimony and learned
treatises. Id. at 1317. Extrinsic evidence is generally viewed “as less reliable than the patent and
its prosecution history in determining how to read claim terms|[.]” /d. at 1318. “The court may
receive extrinsic evidence to educate itself about the invention and the relevant technology, but
the court may not use extrinsic evidence to arrive at a claim construction that is clearly at odds

with the construction mandated by the intrinsic evidence.” Elkay Mfg. Co. v. Ebco Mfg. Co., 192

F.3d 973, 977 (Fed. Cir. 1999).
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B. The ‘864 Patent
1. “Ona Spool”

The term “on a spool” appears in asserted claims 3, 6 and 12.

Lincoln’s Position: Lincoln’s primary position is that the term “on a spool” is not an
affirmative limitation. (Citing CX-377C at Q. 73-74.) Because of this, Lincoln submits that the
construction of this term is unnecessary. (CIB at 40.)

Lincoln argues that a person of ordinary skill in the art would readily recognize that the
‘864 patent and each of the asserted claims of the ‘864 patent are directed to a “weld wire”
having certain physical properties. Lincoln asserts that the claims are not directed to a
combination of a weld wire and some weld wire delivery system. Lincoln says that each of the
asserted claims clearly claim “[a] weld wire...”. (Citing JX-1 at claims 3, 6, and 12.) (CIB at
40-41.)

Lincoln notes that the ‘864 patent expressly states that “[t]he present invention pertains to
an improved weld wire and a process for making the improved weld wire for use in various types
of welding machines.” (Citing JX-1 at 2:25-27.) Lincoln continues that the ‘864 patent
describes the problem with prior wire is the wire shape, which has an effect on the consistency of
bead placement and that a “wire” with no shape memory (i.e., “killed” wire) results in
inconsistent positioning of the weld wire as it exits the welding gun. (/d. at 1:15-57.) Lincoln
asserts that to solve this problem, the ‘864 patent states that “the use of shape memory weld wire
in accordance with the present invention” results in a consistent weld bead. (Id. at 2:54-59, 7:59-
8:19 (emphasis added by Lincoln).) Lincoln states that nowhere does the ‘864 patent indicate
that the weld wire must be placed on or be taken off of a “spool” (as defined by Respondents) to

achieve any of the stated benefits. (CIB at 41.)
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Lincoln argues that the importance of imparting shape memory in a “weld wire” was
echoed during prosecution of the ‘864 patent and notes, for example, that during prosecution
applicants pointed out to the Examiner that “the shape memory imparted on the weld wire of the
present invention is used to improve the quality of the weld bead and facilitate formation of the
weld bead.” (Citing JX-2 at LEITC000975.) Lincoln alleges that nowhere did applicant state
that the invention was a weld wire coupled to some structural “spool” device, or that the spool
was a necessary feature of the claimed invention. Lincoln concludes that to read the language
“on a spool” or “on a spool of weld wire” into the claim as an affirmative limitation ignores the
entirety and importance of the intrinsic record in contradiction to well settled law. (Citing
Phillips, 415 F.3d at 1313.) (CIB at 41-42.)

Lincoln says that since the issuance of Order No. 36 and the pretrial briefing, the Federal
Circuit has explicitly held that the Catalina analysis applies to language in the preamble and
body of the claims and therefore such claim language can be interpreted to be intended use, and
Lincoln maintains its position that on the spool and spool of weld wire are statements of intended
use of the term weld wire. (Citing Marrin, 2010 WL 1007727; CIB at Section II[.A.1.) (CIB at
42.)

Lincoln indicates this language was already construed in Order No. 36. Specifically, in
response to Sidergas’ motion no. 32, Lincoln says that Order No. 36 addressed the import of the
“on a spool” language of the asserted claims and agreed that “weld wire that is not stored on a
spool may infringe claim 3,” so long as “it has the required shape memory, and that the shape
memory would be at least partially imparted on the wire prior to winding on a spool.” (Citing
Order No. 36 at 11.) Lincoln asserts that, with respect to claims 6 and 12, Order No. 36 also

determined that no physical spool is required, but rather that “the shape memory must be
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imparted at least partially prior to the wire being wound on a spool, and that the shape memory
must be at least partially retained when the wire is unwound from the spool.” (/d. at 12.) (CIB
at 42.)

Lincoln argues that in reading Order No. 36, the language “on a spool” must be read as it
appears in the claim, which is “spool of weld wire.” Lincoln asserts that Respondents’ and
Staff’s constructions omit the critical claim language “of weld wire” which clarifies the claim
language “on a spool.” (Citing JX-1 at claims 3, 6 and 12.) (CIB at 42-43.)

Lincoln continues to the extent that consideration of the term “spool” is necessary, or
that this term must be construed, the actual language found in the asserted claims is “on a spool
of weld wire” and it is this language that must be considered. (Citing JX-1 at claims 3, 6, and
12; CX-424C at Q.14, 23.) Lincoln asserts that “[bJecause a person of ordinary skill in the art
would readily understand this language, it requires no construction or interpretation to
understand that the referenced ‘spool of weld wire’ is not a separate object, but the weld wire
itself.” Id. Lincoln avers that the term “spool” has been used in the industry of the bulk weld
wire products to describe the coil or stack of wire found in a box or drum container. (Citing Tr.
at 662:6-25; RX-202C.000117.) Lincoln concludes that it is commonly understood in the
welding industry that loops of wire, whether in a box, in a drum on a reel is referred to as a
“spool of wire.” (Citing CX-421 at 1:20-25; RX-149 at 3:35.) (CIB at 43.)

Lincoln adds that the patentee’s use of this language makes clear to one of ordinary skill
in the art that the claims are not limited to an actual “spool.” (Citing JX-1 at claims 3, 6 and 12;
CX-377C at Q. 159, 185, 232; CX-424C at Q. 14, 23.) Lincoln says the 864 patent’s
specification explains that the weld wire can be stored in various manners. (Citing JX-1 at 2:33-

39.) Lincoln says that Fig. 11 shows one exemplary embodiment of an actual spool that contains
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the spool of weld wire. (Citing JX-1 at 6:50-55, 8:50-55.) (CIB at 44.)

Lincoln reiterates to the extent a definition of “on a spool” is needed to understand the
context of the language of the claims, the actual language of the claims must be considered,
which is “on a spool of weld wire.” Lincoln concludes this language requires no definition as a
person of ordinary skill in the art would understand the plain and ordinary meaning of such a
phrase within the context of the ‘864 patent. (CIB at 44.)

In its reply brief, Lincoln argues Respondents and Staff herald Order No. 36 as being
dispositive of the issues in this case because Order No. 36 stated that it could not “ignore the
claim language found in the body of each of the asserted independent claims that mentions a
spool.” (Citing SGIB at 15; EIB at 26-27; SIB at 12-17.) Lincoln says Respondents thenv
conclude that because “spool” is a limitation it must be defined as they propose. (/d.) (CRB at
7.)

Lincoln argues that Respondents’ discussions overlook the language from Order No. 36
that states Lincoln must demonstrate that “if the accused weld wire was wound on a spool, the
shape memory of the wire would meet the requirements set forth in claim 3.” (Citing Order No.
36 at 11 (Lincoln notes similar language for claims 6 and 12 is found at page 12).) Lincoln
argues that with this construction, the term “spool” need not be defined. (Citing CIB at 43.)
(CRB at 7))

Lincoln states that Staff asserts that the “only reasonable” way to reconcile the language
of Order No. 36 is “to interpret the Order as requiring a spool inasmuch as the wire must ‘wound
on’ and ‘unwound from’ a spool,” but “strangely” not requiring “storage” on a “spool.” (Citing
SIB at 12-14.) Lincoln argues that Staff bases its interpretation on the use of the words “if” and

“when” at various points within Order No. 36. (Id.) (CRB at 7-8.)
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Lincoln argues that its position that the claim language “spool” is not a limitation but a
statement of intended use is well-supported by the recent Federal Circuit decision in Marrin v.
Griffin, No. 2009-1031, 2010 WL 1007727 (Fed. Cir. Mar. 22, 2010). Lincoln says the Federal
Circuit held the use recited in the preamble — that the scratch-off label was “for permitting a user
to write thereon without the use of a marking implement” — was not a claim limitation, nor did
the fact that the term in a preamble was a part of the claim change the result. As the court put it,
“[t]he mere fact that a structural term in the preamble is part of the claim does not mean that the
preamble’s statement of purpose or other description is also part of the claim.” Jd. at 3. (CRB at
8.

Lincoln states that Respondents propose that “on a spool” means “on a cylindrical piece
of material around which wire is wound.” (Citing RX-113 at 4.) Lincoln argues that
Respondents’ proposed definition is contrary to the intrinsic evidence (see CIB at 43-44), and it
fails to recognize the terminology understood by one of ordinary skill in the art when referring to
weld wire when stored via containers. Lincoln asserts that to confirm the construction of terms,
as understood by one of ordinary skill in the art, it is entirely appropriate for a Court to consider
the teachings of prior art references in the field, quoting:

[A] court in its discretion may admit and rely on prior art proffered by one of the

parties, whether or not cited in the specification or the file history. This prior art

can often help to demonstrate how a disputed term is used by those skilled in the

art. Such art may make it unnecessary to rely on expert testimony and may save
much trial time.

Vitronics Corp. v. Conceptronic, Inc., 90 F.3d 1576, 1584 (Fed. Cir. 1996). (CRB at9.)
Lincoln argues that both U.S. Patent Nos. 5,277,314 (RX-149) and 6,260,781 (CX-421)
are replete with instances which inform a person of ordinary skill in the art as to the meaning of

“spool of weld wire.” Lincoln says that the ‘314 patent continuously refers to item “B” in its
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drawings (a portion of Fig. 2 is reproduced below) as a “wire spool” or “spool”. (Citing RX-149

at 6:34-67.)

@
:
!

I

F

(CRB at 9-10.)

Lincoln argues that the Abstract expressly states that the ‘314 patent is directed to a
“retainer ring for a container of low twist welding wire which container includes a cylindrical
outer wall, a lower partition and an upper opening through which welding wire is drawn from a
hollow, cylindrical spool of welding wire formed of a multitude of convolutions of wire ...”
(Citing RX-149 at Abstract (emphasis added by Lincoln).) Lincoln avers that “at no point does
the ‘314 patent define the wire as something upon which the wire is wound.” (CRB at 10.)

Lincoln asserts that the ‘781 patent refers to the single length of wire stacked in a
container as a “spool.” Lincoln cites for example, in the Background section it states: “[s]mall
diameter welding wire is typically packed in a large container in a single spool which has a
natural ‘cast.” This means that in the free state, the wire tends to seek a generally straight line
condition.” (Citing CX-421 at 1:18-21 (emphasis added by Lincoln).) Lincoln adds that in
describing prior art Figures 7 and 8 (reproduced below), the ‘781 patent states that “[d]epending

on the diameter used relative to the storage container, the wire has a higher density along the
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edge portion of the storage container versus the inside diameter of the spool itself adjacent the

spool cavity.” (Citing CX-421 at 2:62-66 (emphasis added by Lincoln).)

62\: B\j 62\ z
I A A !
6NN RN
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FIG. 7 FIG. 8
{PRIOR ART) {PRIOR ART}

(CRB at 10-11.)

Lincoln says that when drafting the application that led to the ‘864 patent, rather than
using only the term “reel,” applicants stated that the invention was weld wire which can be
placed in/on a “reel, spool, container, or the like.” (Citing JX-1 at 2:39-46.) Lincoln alleges that
with this understanding of storage or packaging, applicant consistently referred to the wire being
wound and unwound from a “spool of weld wire,” rather than a “reel.” (Citing JX-1 at Abstract,
7:51-64.) Lincoln continues, “armed with the knowledge of the industry and understanding that
the ‘weld wire’ of the invention in the ‘864 patent was not to be limited to that wound on a ‘reel,’
but included wire in ‘containers,’ the applicants stated that their weld wire was wound on and
unwound from a ‘spool of weld wire.”” (Citing JX-1 at Abstract, 7:51-64, claims 3, 6 and 12.)
(CRB at 11-12.)

Lincoln argues that Sidergas used the term ““spool” to describe its accused bulk weld wire
products in its business documents. (Citing Tr. at 662:6-25; RX-202C.000117.) Lincoln
contends that the Sidergas business documents describing the accused weld wire containers as
“spools” speak accurately, and the claim phrase “spool of weld wire” means “spool of weld
wire.” (CRB at 12.)

Lincoln says Respondents argue that during prosecution Lincoln “equated the term ‘spool
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of weld wire’ with the single word ‘reel.”” Lincoln asserts that this sole statement relied upon by
Respondents does not provide the “clear disclaimer” required, as a matter of law, to now limit
the claims to a single disclosed exemplary embodiment. (Citing Voda v. Cordis Corp., 536 F.3d
1311, 1321 (Fed. Cir. 2008).) (CRB at 12-13.)

Lincoln argues that, contrary to Staff’s assertions the claim language “wound on” and
“unwound from” is consistent with the proper definition of “spool of weld wire.” Lincoln refers
to the figures of the ‘314 and ‘781 patents, which it says shows the weld wire is wound “on” to
the top of the spool of weld wire during winding, and during payout is “unwound” from the top
of the spool of weld wire. (Citing RX-149; CX-421.) Fig. 2A of CX-421 is reproduced below

with an annotation “balloon” added by Lincoln.

Weld wire being
wound “on” to spool
of we